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            AUREEN HOUSE
)[image: ]THE COMBER WATER SUPPLY 

In my story - “The history of Aureen House” for a talk to the Comber Historical Society in 2002 I stated that the water supply to “Aureen House” was taken from the supply to the Upper Distillery at Killinchy Street. This led me to investigate the water supply of Comber and its history. This document is the results of my research.

Supply to “AUREEN”
A pond, beside the second Comber Presbyterian church (the site is now the carpark), was fed from the Glen river.  The supply pipe from this to the distillery passed under Killinchy Street. (See Fig.3, P.2) 
Another pipe went underground, into the riverbed and up through the walled garden of “Aureen”, branches from this pipe were taken to greenhouses and taps in the garden. This pipe then continued to the tanks at the house and water in the tanks was therefore maintained at the same level as the water in the distillery pond. 
When this supply ran low in the summer a pump in “Aureen” yard, which was always used to get drinking water, was used to top up the tanks.
 (
Fig.1
)[image: C:\Users\Erskine\Documents\1.Water\Aureen- Water Words 2002\PP,+Water Supplies Photos.Talk + Aureen\Photos for Aureen Talk PP.Ed\Maps - Comber water supply 002.jpg]Below: Fig. 1. -  Site plan showing “Aureen House” in the Square Comber with the Walled garden (In Red) In Blue the water supply in the Comber Town. (OS Map Surveyed 1859 Revised 1902) (See P.6 map which shows the rivers, dams and mills of Comber.)

The above map, Fig 1, shows the Distillery with the pond beside the Presbyterian Church. The pond was supplied from the Glen River diverted at a weir behind Braeside then passing over an aqueduct (which is still there in 2017), known as the “Troughs”, map, Fig 1., lower left and photo. Page 2, below, Fig.2, some six meters above the Glen River. The pipe from this pond passed under the road to the distillery, Fig.3, P.2. The Glen River travelled under the road and joined the Comber (Enler) River. At one time it ran through the Comber Abbey which was situated where St Mary’s Parish Church is now. 
The Lower Distillery (Top Right) is shown supplied from the Enler River. A sluice diverts the water into the distillery. Pumps (P) and wells are also marked on this map.          
Why had “Aureen” the water rights from the distillery? 
			     					     The Troughs - Aqueduct over Glen River
 (
Fig.2
)[image: C:\Users\Erskine\Documents\1.Water\Aureen- Water Words 2002\PP,+Water Supplies Photos.Talk + Aureen\Photos for Aureen Talk PP.Ed\Aquaduct.jpg]One obvious reason was that John Miller (1796 - 1883) owned both “Aureen” and the Distillery! 

Quotations from Norman Nevin’s history of Comber -
 “George Johnston was running the Distillery in 1825 and took John Miller into partnership in 1826. The business was successful and in 1829-30, 80,000 gallons of whiskey were produced. 
Power for this Distillery came from a breast wheel, 14 feet in diameter on the river and in summer months, when the river was low, by a steam engine.” 
- So water was required by the distillery and it is assumed that the pond was in place in 1826. (Ed.)


 However there may have been another reason; James Milling, a neighbour of John Miller of “Aureen” was maybe angling to share the water supply to Aureen with his hotel/pub in The Square!

It was quite unusual at the time for houses to have a water supply. Only large houses, such as the Andrews family owned, had a private supply. It is known that the Andrews bought Ballywilliam house for the water rights; see more below when the subject of water mills is discussed. Most houses had to rely on hand pumps in the street or in some cases on their own land. Some used water from wells and rivers. 

 (
Fig.3
.
)[image: C:\Users\Erskine\Documents\1.Water\Aureen- Water Words 2002\PP,+Water Supplies Photos.Talk + Aureen\Photos for Aureen Talk PP\Pipe to distillery 4.'03.jpg]


Fig.3 Photo: (2006) 
The remains of a pipe under Killinchy St. which had supplied water from the pond, (previously situated where the carpark of the church, shown here) to the Upper Distillery.   















COMBER WATER SUPPLIES………………………………..The Mills of Comber Parish.


[image: ][image: C:\Users\Erskine\Pictures\img001.jpg]This leads on to the politics of “Water Rights” and the delays of getting water into Comber ………………...

 Water was a very precious commodity in the Parish of Comber and one of the major uses to which it was put was to drive mills.

 On the right Fig.4, is shown an extract from Ordinance Survey Memoirs (No. 7) of 1837.
 This memoirs lists mills in; “Lisleen, Gransha (4), Tullyhubbert (2), Ballystockart (3), Ballymagaughey, Ballyaltikilligan and Ballymaglaff” - 15 at least! ….. Aren’t Town land names wonderfully poetic!

In these Memoirs it is stated under the heading “social and productive economy,” that “the only existing circumstance to which Comber appears to owe its improvement is in the supply of water” 

 The Memoirs also state; “There were numerous mills in the Parish of Comber” (See, Pages 30/31 “Mills” & P43 “lakes & rivers”) 

These memoirs go on to list six mills and two distilleries in Town Parks, Comber. - (See next page a list of these.)

It states that…. “These mills were supplied by the two rivers which flow through Comber. The Enler - which also supplied many other mills outside the parish (e.g. Dundonald) and the lower Distillery.
 Also the Glen River, or sometimes referred to as a stream” 


 (
Fig 
5
.
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Possibly the last remaining mill building in the parish of Comber is the one at Clattering Ford on the Ballygowan Road. The building is now a private residence and the pond across the road from it is maintained by a wildfowlers’ Club. (Pictured left, Fig 5.)



 





MILLS AND DISTILLERIES of COMBER TOWN PARKS
Extracts from - “The Industrial Archaeology of County Down.”

 (
Photo above, 
F
ig.5
.
   ---
ooOoo
---
Left and above are extracts from “The Industrial Archaeology of County Down.” 
1963. 
P.s 43 &44.
See also
 
in the 
above
 extracts
 other references to Comber Townparks and Parish mills; P.s 10, 29(65), 30(66), 36, 38, 39 &41.
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HOW THE CISTERCIANS USED THE RIVER IN COMBER ABBEY?

 (
Fig. 
6
.
)Mr. Norman Nevin in his history of Comber (p.10) describes how the Glen River was used by the Comber Abbey to flush out the privy! (See illustration left, Fig. 6. shows how the river is diverted through the Abbey grounds.) He also says that large houses in the town had a covered sewage drain to the river. 
I suspect that the sewage from “Aureen” was also discharged into the Glen River.
So there was a great abundance of water but only used by a select few.
Now, what did the majority of people in Comber do for water? 
They used pumps, wells or rainwater and some would have had access to river water.
Old maps show many pumps and wells around Comber, on the streets or, for larger houses, in their yards.
 


WHY, WHEN OTHER TOWNS HAD MAINS WATER, DID COMBER STILL NOT HAVE A MAINS SUPPLY IN 1950? 

It seems incredible that the town existed without main water supply for so long!

The public health (Ireland) act 1874 provided that; “sanitary officers (doctors) be appointed to give advice on the water supplies and the duty of the authorities was to provide it.”  

A book, “Hints on the water supply of small towns and villages” by L. L. Macassey, chief engineer, Belfast water commissioners, was published in 1877. 
This book shows that advice could be had on how to provide water to towns like Comber at that time.

Because of the lack of public water, sanitation was deplorable - there were no sewers! In one report it was described how water was flushed down the gutters to clear away debris thrown there by householders; see map, P.6 below.
  
Previously, in 1933, the following was reported in the Newtownards Chronicle “Dr Henry praised the Council for the recent cleansing of ashpits and yards in Comber, thereby removing a potential breeding ground for germs.”
 
Desmond Rainey in his extracts from the Newtownards Chronicle of 1947, on Comber Historical Society’s website analysis of Comber, quotes; “Although sewers had been laid, no attempt had been made to provide conveniences, while housewives had to go 400 yards for a supply of water and 50 yards to dump refuse. The lives of children were in danger from two unprotected rivers running through the camp (?) grounds. In February, 1947, the Council and the Ministry of Health agreed to give the matter their fullest consideration. However, no great progress had been made by the end of the year.”  

On the map below, Fig. 7, P.6, dated 1858/1902 a large “Tank” is shown on the Glen Road at a site adjacent to the Brownlow Arms public house. It is assumed that this tank supplied the water to flush sewage from the streets and was supplied from river water, possibly via the Ballywilliam/Clattering Ford mill race. Perhaps supplying Maxwell Court and Ardara, both Andrews’ houses on the way! Alternately, may have been supplied from a Glen Road source.
 This map also shows the rivers, dams and mills of Comber.



RIVERS, PUMPS AND DAMS SUPPLIED THE WATER IN COMBER before 1952!
 (
F
ig.7
.
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Tank
Shown here Fig.7 used to flush sewage from the streets of Comber

Also shows rivers and dams of Comber













Belfast had varying supplies of water from the mid 1700’s, even when the great Mourne water supply was provided to Belfast and other areas in 1933, Comber was neglected even though the mains passed close by. 

Other towns had some form of public supply - Moneymore, County Derry, for instance, had a supply from a mill race, and piped into some houses by the Drapers’ Company in 1615!

There were of course many strong arguments why Comber did not get a supply of public water; - cost - not enough supply - no storage reservoir - two world wars??
 
Perhaps, if one was cynical, it could be said that it was really because those with political power had their own water supply, they needn’t worry as they were all right!

PROGRESS!

1947/1950’s - Quoted from Desmond Rainey’s research "1940's & 1950’s" from the Newtownards Chronicle - on Comber Historical Soc. Website.

1947 - "The first definite step towards providing a supply of water for domestic purposes for residents throughout the Ards and those in the Ballygowan-Comber and Castlereagh areas was taken on 27th October, when William Grant, Minister of Health and Local Government, placed the first of the pipes in position at Killaney near Saintfield. Later the dignitaries attended a function in the Andrews Hall, Comber."

1948 - (Same source as above)
"Work was slow on the Comber Water Scheme, but by November the first consignment of pipes had arrived and work got under way."

NOW! -  We were getting somewhere!
--------------------------------------------------------------

Mains Water Supply arrives in Comber

 
Eventually, two major events led to the water supply coming to Comber; one, was the construction of a new tunnel, two miles long, in the Mournes, from the Annalong River, through Slieve Bignian, to the silent valley. 
The additional supplies to the Mourne reservoirs was completed in 1952 - the year a new branch main was taken to Ballygowan, Comber and Newtownards.

The other event was the requirement of a growing population of Comber, with many new houses being built by Orlit beside the primary school, Darragh Road.
  
The water main pipes arrived in Comber in 1952, Water in the streets but not fully connected to houses till 1957!



 (
      
 
  
Fig.
 
8
 & 
9
       
      From this…………………………..to this
.
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Fountains replaced pumps (Fig. 8 & 9) 


				






FINALLY: BY THE END OF THE 1950’s COMBER HAD WATER AND SEWERS - Comber was expanding and….. 
……………………………WE WERE INTO THE 20th CENTURY! 

OR WERE WE? ……

….. In the 1950’s some people found plenty to complain of about the water supplies! Desi Rainey noted the following reports from the Chronicle.

1950
 Comber Gas Company complained to the Council that gas pipes to premises were being broken by the mechanical digger opening trenches for the new water mains.
The North Down Water Scheme was inaugurated on 4th October at a ceremony at Killaney. Comber was now connected to water piped from the Mournes. But it seems that Comber people were slow in making applications to obtain water in their houses. 

1951
The danger of contaminated water being used at Comber Elementary School was discussed at Council in April. 
The school obtained its water, independently, from a point close to where sewage was discharged from the new Housing Trust estate. *see Additional Information, below.
It was suggested that the school should take its water from the new water main, which passed the school.


The "Market House" in Comber Square was removed in preparation for the laying out of the Garden of Remembrance. 
The pump, Fig. 10 and watering trough were also taken away. 
Some people were unhappy at losing the pump, the feeling being that its water was better for drinking than that provided by the new water scheme!

 (
Fi
g. 10
.
)[image: ]1952
There was a water shortage in Comber during January due to an underground leakage. It was reported that 20,000 gallons were being lost hourly. Problems were discovered in Killinchy Street and the Glen Road, but the main cause of the trouble was in Bridge Street. 
It took twelve days to put the matter right. 
As a result the Council agreed to provide sluice valves for attachment to the mains.

1953
There were complaints regarding a decision by the Council to remove the remaining water pumps in Comber. 
Many thought that the piped water supply was unfit for drinking. 
There were also complaints about the noise of the water pipes in the new houses.
Perhaps the photo and poem by Fanny McRoberts, (Fig10.) explains the nostalgia.
WWater Pump in Comber Square 
                (Note; "Aureen" House in background)

               		                        THE VILLAGE PUMP
A poem by Fanny M McRoberts
(Probably written in the nineteen forties)
         I sing the praise of Comber, and joys and friends so dear,
        But sad to say about one thing water is scarcer than beer;
        And just outside my own hall door beside Gillespie’s soaring tower 
        The village pump is there for all, and those who use it great and small,
        With buckets go from morn till night, it really is a funny sight.
       And horses halt upon their way and take a drink and think it gay.
       But we cannot think it so funny, these advanced times and lots of money
       Being spent in every other way when water is as scarce as tea.

   
  ---------------------------ooOoo-------------------------------

           Written in 2017 by D. Erskine Willis

                ------------------------ooOoo-----------------------------  




                 
*Additional information. Researched 19th October 2005

Extracts from “Geology of Country around Newtownards” - “DED/Geological Survey of Northern Ireland”
P.31 “In the Newtownards area groundwater from the Sherwood Sandstone aquifer has been used to augment the water supply ………. In the 60’s and 70’s studies were carried out to increase the water supply to Comber and Newtownards. Concentrating on the Permo-Triassic Sandstone and Quaternary sand and gravel Aquifers. Both sources have been developed and contribute up to 124,276 Gallons per Hour to the Newtownards/Comber public water supply in 1983.”
P.32 “……..Two boreholes near Comber were producing water for public supply in 1983 giving 14,353 G.P.H. These holes are up to 14 meters deep and water levels are below the Enler River, suggesting a slow recharge from the river - meaning water quality of river is important.


FOOTNOTES

In the talk on this subject given by Erskine Willis to Comber Historical Society in 2002 several large maps were used to illustrate the waterways and layout of Comber. Some of these were too large to include in this document.
Many more slides were used and again these are not all included here. 
----------------------
List of some of the books from Comber Library used to research this article :-

Belfast and DistrictWater Commissioners—The Mourne Scheme 1959
Silent Valley Reservoir - Mourne Mountains, Co. Down—Belfast Water Board—Opening 24th.  May 1933
Brief History and Description—The Belfast and District Water Supply 1931
A New Water Source for Belfast and Eastern Area—Public Consultantation document, DOE Water Service 1989/90
A History of Water Power in Ulster—H. D. Gibbon
Hints on The Water Supply of Small Towns and Villeges—1877—L. L. Macassey
Water Power in the North of Ireland—W. A. McCutcheon ( a paper read at London Science museum 1967 and discussion)
In Search of Water—Being a History of The Belfast Water Supply, 1840-1940—Jack Louden 
Ulster Folk Life Vol. 28 (1982) Ulster Folk and Transport Museum
The Millers and The Mills of Ireland of about 1850—Wm. E. Hogg
Ordnance Survey Memoirs Of Ireland - Parishes Of County Down 11 1832-4, 1837. North Down & The Ards.
“Geology of Country around Newtownards” - “DED/Geological Survey of Northern Ireland” (Post 1983?)
[bookmark: _GoBack]“The Industrial Archaeology of County Down. 1963.”

In addition :- The papers of Norman Nevin in the library were used. (Now available on Comber History website - http://www.comberhistory.com/ ) Also see Desmond Rainey’s Extracts from Newtownards Chronicle on the History of Comber in the 1940’s and 1950’s is on this site. 

List of Maps, obtained from Comber Library, used during research :-
OS 8/7/2/1 1901
OS 8/7/2/2 1901
OS 8/7/1/1 to 9 (9 sheets) also referenced OS R9.D10.42 to 50
As was the map dated 1855 revised 1902 referred to above.

 Other items available;
*Additional maps and photos.
*A PowerPoint presentations of the  COMBER Water Supplies plus the history of “AUREEN” and COMBER ABBEY stones  are available from the writer.
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Parish of Comber

In Gransha there is a corn mill with a breast
wheel 15 feet in diameter and 3 feet in breadth.

In Gransha is a flax mill with a breast wheel 13
feetindiameterand 2 feet 6 inches in breadth; also
in the same townland, a flax mill with a breast
wheel 14 feet in diameter and 2 feet 6 inches in
breadth.

In Tullyhubbert there is a flax mill with a breast
wheel 14 feet 4 inches in diameter and 2 feet 4
inches in breadth; also a corn mill with a breast
wheel 13 feet 4 inches in diameter and 2 feet 9
inches in breadth.

In Ballystockart there is a flax mill with a breast
wheel 14 feet in diameter and 2 feet in breadth;
also 2 corn mills with breast wheels, the first
being 14 feet in diameter and 2 feet 2 inches in
breadth and the second 14 feet in diameter and 2
feet 4 inches in breadth.

InBallywilliam there is a flax mill with a breast
wheel 13 feet 4 inches in breadth [diameter] and
3 feet in breadth.

In Ballymagaughey there is a flax mill with a
breast wheel 15 feet in diameter and 2 feet 10
inches in breadth.

In Ballyaltikilligan is a flax mill with a breast
wheel 14 feet in diameter and 2 feet 3 inches in
breadth.

In the Town Parks of Comber there is a flour
mill with a breast wheel 15 feet in diameter and 4
feet 6 inches in breadth.

Meeting Houses

In the townland of Moneyreagh there is a Pres-
byterian meeting house. Its dimensions are as
follows: [ground plan, main dimensions 80, 28
and 26 feet, “T” shape]. It was built in the year
1770 by subscription and is capabie of accom-
modating about 700. There is nothing remarkable
in its external appearance except the unusual
circumstance of its having a clock placed in its
front.

The meeting house in the townland of Gransha
is 73 feet in length and 30 feet in breadth. It is a
modern, plain, whitewashed and slated building
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7. Town Parks To. (plate 12).
0. 10. Grid ref. 449685

A corn mill of roughly cruciform shape with the
kiln on the N. side and an extension over the wheel on
the S. side. The mill is of rubble masonry with spores
and there are freestone quoins to the main block. The
breast wheel is of wood and iron, 14 ft. in diameter
and 5 ft. wide. The mill has a round-headed doorway
of a type common in the domestic architecture of the
district and usually called an Ards door. There are
g in. freestone jambs, cach with a projecting band,
and the door head has three key blocks. The mill is
probably of late cighteenth-century date and is still
in working order.
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4 CoMpER, MiLL STREET; Tows Parks Tp.
(plate 12). 0. 10. Grid ref. 458694
A six-storey grain store, 86 f. by 36 fi, is all that
remains of the old Andrews flour mill. This store was
built of Scrabo stone in 1860-3 at a cost of £1,750
10 a plan adapted from that of a storc built a short
time before by James Macauley of the Inver Mills
at Larnc, Co. Antrim. The original flour mill and
bleachworks stood to the N.E. Thomas Andrews
(1698-1745) was working the upper mill at Comber,
which was on the S. side of Mill Strcet, as early as
1722. His son, John (1721-1808), acquired the other
Comber mill, known as the old mill, in 1768, and it
was on this sitc that he built his five-storey flour mill

in 1771 at a cost of £1,400. These mills were finally
closed down in 1883 when the milling business of
Isaac Andrews & Sons was transferred to Belfast, and
the buildings were demolished about twenty years
later.?
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5. CoMBER DisTILLERIES Co. LTD., KILLINCHY STREET;
Town Parks Tb. 0.s. 10. Grid ref. 460690

Group of late nineteenth-century industrial build-
ings. The date usually given for the founding of this
business is 1765, but distilling had already been
carried on in Comber by James Patterson, who died
in 1761.2 There was a brewery on the site when John
Miller (1796-1883) came to Comber as a partner in
the business in 1826. A distillery was established soon
afterwards, which in 1834 was run in partnership by
George Johnston and Miller and consisted of an ex-
tensive range of kiln, malt house, two brew houses,
cooler, spirit receiver, still house, engine house, mill,
stores, offices, and two dwelling houses with a total
valuation of £68. Power was provided by a breast-
wheel 14 ft. in diameter and in the summer months
by a steam engine.® The distillery produced around
80,000 gallons a year in 1829—30%. The present com-
pany was founded in 1874.

6. CoMBER, BRIDGE STREET; TowN PARrRks Tb.
o.s. 10. Grid ref. 462693

Group of disused distillery buildings, consisting of
two ranges at right angles, 210 ft. and 180 ft. long
respectively, and built of Scrabo ashlar masonry with
brick dressings. This distillery was established about
1825 by William Byrne (1802-75). It belonged to a
partnership of Byrne, Stitt, and McCance in 1834 and
was valued at £29.% The distillery was worked by a
steam engine and an undershot wheel of 18 ft. in dia-
meter.® From at least 1860 both Comber distilleries
belonged to John Miller, founder of the present
company.

7. TowN Parks Tp. (plate 12).
o.s. 10. Grid ref. 449685

A corn mill of roughly cruciform shape with the
kiln on the N. side and an extension over the wheel on
the S. side. The mill is of rubble masonry with spores
and there are freestone quoins to the main block. The
breast wheel is of wood and iron, 14 ft. in diameter
and 5 ft. wide. The mill has a round-headed doorway
of a type common in the domestic architecture of the
district and usually called an Ards door. There are
g in. freestone jambs, each with a projecting band,
and the door head has three key blocks. The mill is
probably of late eighteenth-century date and is still
in working order.
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                         Mr. Norman Nevin in his history of Comber (p.10) describes how the Glen river was used by the Comber Abbey to flush out the privy!                                                                                     .……………………..(The O.S. map, 1837, shows the river diverted through the church grounds.) 
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